#### NEW FOREST NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY

#### MINUTES OF PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING

# HELD ON TUESDAY 21 MAY 2019 AT 9.30 AM IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, LYMINGTON TOWN HALL, LYMINGTON SO41 9ZG

#### Present:

#### Members:

Leo Randall (Chairman)
Gordon Bailey (Deputy Chairman)
David Bence
George Bisson
Oliver Crosthwaite-Eyre
Gavin Parker
Barry Rickman
John Sanger
Ann Sevier
Richard Taylor

### Officers:

Steve Avery Executive Director Strategy and Planning

Rosalind Alderman
Natalie Walter
Clare Ings
Solicitor and Monitoring Officer
Principal Planning Officer
Senior Planning Officer

David Illsley Policy Manager

Vicki Gibbon Member Services Administrator

Rachel Pardey Administration Assistant

#### 83 Apologies for Absence

83.1 Apologies for absence were received from Richard Clewer, Richard Frampton and Pat Wyeth.

#### 84 Declarations of Interest

84.1 Oliver Crosthwaite-Eyre declared an interest in minute item 87 report item 1 as Trustee of the New Forest Trust.

Ann Sevier declared an interest in minute item 87 report item 1 as a member of the Commoners Defence Association.

#### 85 Minutes

85.1 **RESOLVED:** That the minutes of the meeting held on 16 April 2019 be approved as a true record.

#### 86 Chairman's Announcements

86.1 There were no Chairman's announcements on this occasion.

# 87 Planning Applications for Committee Decision (Paper NFNPA/PC 290/19)

87.1 Members gave detailed consideration to the individual planning applications contained within the report.

**RESOLVED:** That the planning applications listed below be determined as shown in respect of each application and, in accordance with the Authority's policies and procedures, formal notice of the decisions to be sent to the applicants forthwith.

new commoners dwelling; 1 No. new stable; 1 No. new ba	B _ 1 No	
Details  Rockford Farm Barns, Rockford Road, Rockford BH24 3N new commoners dwelling; 1 No. new stable; 1 No. new ba	B _ 1 No	
barns	Rockford Farm Barns, Rockford Road, Rockford BH24 3NB – 1 No. new commoners dwelling; 1 No. new stable; 1 No. new barn; associated access, fencing and hardstanding; demolition of existing barns	
Plinic Particinants   ' ' '	Sam Dovey (For) Cllr Lindsay Burtenshaw (Ellingham, Harbridge & Illsley Parish Council)	
Declarations of Interest Oliver Crosthwaite-Eyre Ann Sevier		
Decision Planning consent granted subject to conditions	Planning consent granted subject to conditions	
Conditions  1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun be expiration of three years from the date of this permiss  Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and O Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the F and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.  2 The occupation of the dwelling and associated development by permitted shall be limited to persons solely or working in the locality in commoning. Furthermore, the occupation of the dwelling shall be for rental purposes such tenancies to be managed solely by the New Fore in perpetuity. The associated farm buildings and grazis shall only be used in association with the occupation of dwelling and shall at no time be severed from the hold sublet to another third party.  Reason: The dwelling and associated development is justified on the basis that they are necessary to sustain practice of commoning in the New Forest and to provice affordable accommodation for New Forest commoners accordance with Policy CP11 of the New Forest Nation Core Strategy and Development Management Policies (December 2010).  3 No development shall take place above slab level untion or exact details of the facing and roofing materials for dwelling, barn and stabling have been submitted to an approved in writing by the New Forest National Park A	country Planning  ppment mainly es only, est Trust ng land of the dings or  only in the de more s in onal Park s (DPD)  il samples the nd	

Development shall only be carried out in accordance with the details approved.

Reason: To ensure an acceptable appearance of the buildings and to preserve the character and appearance of the Conservation Area in accordance with Policies DP1, CP8 and DP6 of the New Forest National Park Core Strategy and Development Management Policies (DPD) (December 2010).

- 4 No development shall take place until a scheme of landscaping of the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the New Forest National Park Authority. This scheme shall include:
  - (a) the existing trees and shrubs which have been agreed to be retained:
  - (b) a specification for new planting (species, size, spacing and location);
  - (c) areas for hard surfacing and the materials to be used;
  - (d) other means of enclosure;
  - (e) a method and programme for its implementation and the means to provide for its future maintenance.

No development shall take place unless these details have been approved and then only in accordance with those details.

Reason: To safeguard trees and natural features and to ensure that the development takes place in an appropriate way and to comply with Policies CP8, CP2 and DP1 of the New Forest National Park Core Strategy and Development Management Policies (DPD) (December 2010).

5 All hard and soft landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. The works shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons following the occupation of the buildings or the completion of the development, whichever is the sooner.

Any trees or plants which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size or species, unless the National Park Authority gives written consent to any variation.

Reason: To ensure the appearance and setting of the development is satisfactory and to comply with Policy DP1 of the New Forest National Park Core Strategy and Development Management Policies (DPD) (December 2010).

6 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) England Order 2015 (or any re-enactment of that Order) no extension (or

alterations) otherwise approved by Classes A or C of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the Order, shall be erected or carried out on the approved dwellings without express planning permission first having been granted.

Reason: To ensure the dwelling remains of a size which is appropriate to its location within the countryside and to comply with Policies DP11 and DP13 of the New Forest National Park Core Strategy and Development Management Policies (DPD) (December 2010).

7 No external lighting shall be installed on the site unless details of such proposals have been submitted to and approved in writing by the New Forest National Park Authority.

Reason: To protect the amenities of the area in accordance with Policies DP1 and CP6 of the New Forest National Park Core Strategy and Development Management Policies (DPD) (December 2010).

8 No development shall take place until the proposed slab levels in relationship to the existing ground levels set to an agreed datum shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the New Forest National Park Authority.

Development shall only take place in accordance with those details which have been approved.

Reason: To ensure that the development takes place in an appropriate way in accordance with Policy DP1 of the New Forest National Park Core Strategy and Development Management Policies (DPD) (December 2010).

9 No development shall take place until a Construction Environment Management Plan has been submitted and approved in writing by the National Park Authority. The Management Plan shall include the measures and recommendations within the Ecology Assessment (Arcadian Ecology Feb 2019) in respect of timing of works, ecological clerk of works, management of water on site, management of excavations and excavated material, location of materials storage, construction compound and contractor parking. Operations shall proceed and be maintained in accordance with the plan unless otherwise agreed in writing.

Reason: To safeguard protected species in accordance with Policies DP1 and CP2 of the New Forest National Park Core Strategy and Development Management Policies (DPD) (December 2010).

10 No development shall take place until a Biodiversity Conservation and Enhancement plan for the land contained within the blue line along with a final specification of the artificial biodiversity compensation measures (e.g. type/design) for the site has been submitted and approved in writing by the National Park Authority. This shall include the following details:

- details of desired nature conservation outcomes
- limits of acceptable environmental change, management measures proposed
- a monitoring framework to inform management and assess success of delivery, timetable for the implementation of the actions.

The plan shall cover the lifetime of the occupation and use of the land in question and include a five-year plan with annual actions which will be subject to renewal and review as required by the Authority after each five-year period.

Reason: To safeguard protected species and designated sites in accordance with Policies DP1, CP1 and CP2 of the New Forest National Park Core Strategy and Development Management Policies (DPD) (December 2010).

- 11 No development shall be carried out until proposals for the mitigation or offsetting of the impact of phosphorus arising from the development on the River Avon Special Area of Conservation (SAC), including mechanisms to secure the timely implementation of the proposed approach, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the New Forest National Park Authority. Such proposals must:
  - Provide for mitigation in accordance with the Authority's Interim Mitigation Strategy (or any amendment to or replacement for this document in force at the time), or for mitigation to at least an equivalent effect;
  - Provide details of the manner in which the proposed mitigation is to be secured. Details to be submitted shall include arrangements for the ongoing monitoring of any such proposals which form part of the proposed mitigation measures.

The development shall be carried out in accordance with and subject to the approved proposals.

Reason: The impacts of the proposed development must be mitigated before any development is carried out in order to ensure that there will be no adverse impacts on the River Avon Special Area of Conservation (SAC), in accordance with the Authority's Interim Phosphorus Mitigation Strategy.

12 The stables and barn subject of this permission shall only be used for commoning or agricultural purposes and for no other commercial, business or storage purposes whatsoever.

Reason: The buildings are only justified on the basis that it is

necessary for agriculture and in accordance with Policy DP20 of the New Forest National Park Core Strategy and Development Management Policies (DPD) (December 2010).

13 Development shall only be carried out in accordance with drawing nos: 5873-03-WLA-001, 5873-03-AC-002, 5873-03-WLA-003 Rev A, 80353-02 Rev B, 5873-03-WLA-100, 5873-03-WLA-101, 5873-03-WLA-102,

5873-03-WLA-200, 5873-03-WLA-201, 5873-03-WLA-300 Rev A and 5873-03-WLA-301 Rev A. No alterations to the approved development shall be made unless otherwise agreed in writing by the New Forest National Park Authority.

Reason: To ensure an acceptable appearance of the building in accordance with policies CP7, CP8, DP6 and DP1 of the New Forest National Park Core Strategy and Development Management Policies (DPD) December 2010.

- 14. No demolition shall take place until a Written Scheme of archaeological/ historic building Investigation (WSI) has been submitted to and approved by the local planning authority in writing. For buildings that are included within the WSI, no demolition or development shall take place other than in accordance with the agreed WSI, which shall include the statement of significance and research objectives, and
  - a. The programme and methodology of historic building investigation and recording and the nomination of a competent person(s) or organisation to undertake the agreed works.
  - b. The programme for post-investigation assessment and subsequent analysis, publication & dissemination and deposition of resulting material. This part of the condition shall not be discharged until these elements have been fulfilled in accordance with the programme set out in the WSI.

Reason: The development is located in an area of archaeological significance where the recording of archaeological remains should be carried out prior to the development taking place in accordance with Policy DP1 of the New Forest National Park Core Strategy and Development Management Policies (DPD) (December 2010).

Voting

Unanimous

REPORT ITEM 2				
Application No.	19/00206/FULL			
Details	Southways, Lisle Court Road, Lymington, SO41 5SH – Extension to existing garage			
Public Participants	Paul Chapman (For)			
Decision	Planning consent granted subject to conditions			
Conditions	The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.			
	Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.			
	Development shall only be carried out in accordance with drawing numbers: R101 and R102. No alterations to the approved development shall be made unless otherwise agreed in writing by the New Forest National Park Authority.			
	Reason: To ensure an acceptable appearance of the building in accordance with policies CP7, CP8, DP6 and DP1 of the New Forest National Park Core Strategy and Development Management Policies (DPD) December 2010.			
	3 Unless otherwise first agreed in writing by the New Forest National Park Authority the external facing and roofing materials shall be as stated on the application form hereby approved.			
	Reason: To ensure an acceptable appearance of the building in accordance with Policy DP1 of the New Forest National Park Core Strategy and Development Management Policies (DPD) (December 2010).			
	4 The building the subject of this permission shall only be used for purposes incidental to the dwelling on the site and shall not be used for habitable accommodation such as kitchens, living rooms and bedrooms.			
	Reason: To protect the character and appearance of the countryside in accordance with Policies DP11 and DP12 of the adopted New Forest National Park Core Strategy and Development Management Policies (DPD) (December 2010).			
	Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any re-enactment of that Order) no garage or other outbuilding otherwise approved by Class E of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the Order shall be erected or carried out without express planning permission first having been granted.			

	Reason: In view of the physical characteristics of the plot, the New Forest National Park Authority would wish to ensure that any future development proposals do not adversely affect the visual amenities of the area and the amenities of neighbouring properties, contrary to Policy DP1 of the New Forest National Park Core Strategy and Development Management Policies (DPD) (December 2010).
Voting	Unanimous

REPORT ITEM 3				
Application No.	19/00279/FULL			
Details	Incholm, North Road, Brockenhurst, SO42 7RQ – 1 No. detached dwelling; 1 terrace of 3 no. dwellings; parking; access alteration; demolition of existing dwelling			
Public Participants	Giles Moir (For) Cllr John Korbey (Brockenhurst Parish Council) Cllr Maureen Holding (District Ward Councillor)			
Decision	Planning consent granted subject to conditions			
Conditions	The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.			
	Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.			
	The trees/hedges on the site which are shown to be retained on the approved plans shall be protected during all site clearance, demolition and building works in accordance with the measures set out in the submitted Treecall Consulting Ltd Arboricultural Impact Assessment and Method Statement dated 21 March 2019 Ref: DS/64319/AL alongside the recommendations as set out in BS5837: 2012.			
	Attention is draw to the phasing of arboricultural operations which highlights A pre-commencement site meeting.  Reason: To safeguard trees and natural features which are important to the visual amenities of the area.  No development shall take place until a scheme of landscaping of the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the New Forest National Park Authority. This scheme shall include:			
	<ul> <li>(a) the existing trees and shrubs which have been agreed to be retained;</li> <li>(b) a specification for new planting (species, size, spacing and location);</li> </ul>			

- (c) areas for hard surfacing and the materials to be used;
- (d) other means of enclosure;
- (e) a method and programme for its implementation and the means to provide for its future maintenance.

No development shall take place unless these details have been approved and then only in accordance with those details.

Reason: To safeguard trees and natural features and to ensure that the development takes place in an appropriate way and to comply with Policy DP1 of the New Forest National Park Core Strategy and Development Management Policies (DPD) (December 2010).

4 All hard and soft landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. The works shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons following the occupation of the buildings or the completion of the development, whichever is the sooner.

Any trees or plants which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size or species, unless the National Park Authority gives written consent to any variation.

Reason: To ensure the appearance and setting of the development is satisfactory and to comply with Policy DP1 of the New Forest National Park Core Strategy and Development Management Policies (DPD) (December 2010).

A scheme for the parking of cycles shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the National Park Authority and completed prior to the development being first occupied.

The spaces shall be retained and kept available for their intended purpose at all times.

Reason: To ensure adequate parking provision is made in the interests of highway safety and to comply with Policy DP1 of the New Forest National Park Core Strategy and Development Management Policies (DPD) (December 2010), section 4 of the National Planning Policy Framework and the Development Standards SPD.

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the arrangements for parking and turning within its curtilage have been implemented.

These areas shall be kept available for their intended purposes at all times.

Reason: To ensure adequate parking provision is made in the interest of highway safety and to comply with Policies DP1 of the New Forest National Park Core Strategy and Development Management Policies (DPD) (December 2010) and Section 4 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

7 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) England Order 2015 (or any re-enactment of that Order) no extension (or alterations) otherwise approved by Classes A, B or C of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the Order, garage or other outbuilding otherwise approved by Class E of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the Order shall be erected or carried out without express planning permission first having been granted.

Reason: To ensure the development remains of a scale and character which is appropriate to its location within the countryside and to comply with Policies DP1, CP9 and CP8 of the New Forest National Park Core Strategy and Development Management Policies (DPD) (December 2010).

- 8 No windows/doors shall be installed until the following details have been submitted to and approved in writing by the New Forest National Park Authority.
  - a) Typical joinery details including window/doors, eaves, verge, bargeboards.

Development shall only take place in accordance with those details which have been approved.

Reason: To protect the character and architectural interest of the building in accordance with Policies DP1, DP6 and CP7 of the New Forest National Park Core Strategy and Development Management Policies (DPD) (December 2010).

9 No external lighting shall be installed on the site unless details of such proposals have been submitted to and approved in writing by the New Forest National Park Authority.

Reason: To protect the amenities of the area in accordance with Policies DP1 and CP6 of the New Forest National Park Core Strategy and Development Management Policies (DPD) (December 2010).

10 Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the National Park Authority, development shall only take place in accordance with the recommendations for ecological mitigation and enhancement which are set out in the ecological report hereby approved (ABR Ecology 3 June 2018, updated 5 March 2019). The specified measures shall be implemented and retained at the site in perpetuity.

Reason: To safeguard protected species in accordance with Policies DP1 and CP2 of the New Forest National Park Core Strategy and Development Management Policies (DPD) (December 2010).

11 No development shall take place above slab level until samples or exact details of the facing and roofing materials have been submitted to and approved in writing by the New Forest National Park Authority.

Development shall only be carried out in accordance with the details approved.

Reason: To ensure an acceptable appearance of the building in accordance with Policy DP1 of the New Forest National Park Core Strategy and Development Management Policies (DPD) (December 2010).

12 Development shall only be carried out in accordance with drawing nos: 8743/600 Rev C, 8743/601 Rev C and 8743/602 Rev C. No alterations to the approved development shall be made unless otherwise agreed in writing by the New Forest National Park Authority.

Reason: To ensure an acceptable appearance of the buildings in accordance with policies CP7, CP8, DP6 and DP1 of the New Forest National Park Core Strategy and Development Management Policies DPD (December 2010).

13 Prior to the commencement of development ecological mitigation for the Solent and/or New Forest Special Protection Areas, Special Areas of Conservation and/or Ramsar sites shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the New Forest National Park Authority. The ecological mitigation may take the form of a planning obligation which secures financial contributions in accordance with the Authority's adopted Development Standards (SPD) and the Solent (SRMP) Explanatory Note.

Reason: To safeguard sites of international ecological importance in accordance with Policies CP1 and CP2 of the adopted New Forest National Park Core Strategy and Development Management Policies DPD, Development Standards SPD and the SRMP.

Voting

8:2

## 88 Annual Monitoring Report (Paper NFNPA/PC 291/19)

88.1 David Illsley presented his report advising members that the National Park Authority is required to produce a monitoring report each year detailing the progress of documents set out in the Authority's Local Development Scheme; dwelling completions including affordable dwellings; neighbourhood development plans which had been 'made' by the

- Authority; and co-operation with local planning authorities and relevant bodies under the Localism Act's 'duty to cooperate'.
- 88.2 Mr Illsley went on to highlight several areas of the report. This included the number of completed dwellings in the 2017 2018 reporting period, which at 25 net new dwellings was similar to the annualised average of 23 dwellings completed in the National Park since designated in 2006. The report confirms that in 2017 2018 no affordable dwellings had been completed. Affordable housing delivery in the National Park has been affected by changes in national policy and was an issue that the revised Local Plan (due to be adopted later in 2019) seeks to address. The Authority continued to work with a number of town and parish councils on the preparation of their Neighbourhood Plans and continued with formal joint working with the other minerals and waste planning authorities in Hampshire under the 'duty to cooperate'.
- 88.3 Members noted the report.
- 89 Planning Appeal Decisions (Paper NFNPA/PC 292/19)
- 89.1 Members noted the appeal decisions.
- 90 Items of urgent business
- 90.1 There were no items of urgent business on this occasion.
- 91 Date of next meeting

The meeting ended at 10:50 am.

91.1 Members noted that the next meeting of the Committee would be held at 09:30 hours on Tuesday 18 June 2019 in the Council Chamber, Lymington Town Hall, Avenue Road, Lymington.

	Date
Chairman	